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Statement of Compliance

HON TROY BUSWELL MLA
Treasurer and Minister for Housing and Works; Commerce; Science and Innovation

In accordance with Section 61 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for your
information and presentation to Parliament, the annual report of ChemCentre forthe 12 months
ended 30`h June 2009 . The comparative figures are for the 11 months to 30 June 2008.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Management Act 2006.

Member of Governing Board
Date: 11th September 2009

Member of Governing Board
Date: 11th September 2009
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Overview

From the Chair

FROM THE CHAIR

For the year ended 30 June 2009

As the foundation Chairman of the ChemCentre Board, I have been intimately involved in the evolution of
ChemCentre from its previous incarnations as part of a government department, and then as a new autonomous
entity, the WA Chemistry Centre, after August 2007. This past year has brought many challenges as ChemCentre has
emerged from the chrysalis of government to complete its first full financial year as the State's newest statutory
authority. I commend the management, staff and Board of ChemCentre for addressing these challenges head on
whilst maintaining an excellent level of response and service, establishing a new set of business strategies and
beginning to build a sustainable commercial operation and brand for its shareholder, the Government of WA, and its
key stakeholders, the people of Western Australia.

The most imminent, and perhaps the most significant, challenge is the relocation of ChemCentre to the new
Resources and Chemistry Precinct on the Curtin University of Technology site in Bentley. The move to new premises
is of great strategic value for ChemCentre, enhancing the provision of first class chemistry and forensic services for
Western Australia, whilst opening new opportunities for growth, cooperation and knowledge-building.
ChemCentre's new identity is the result of a rebranding strategy and marketing communications plan adopted by the
Board in September 2008. The brand strategy was developed over a 12 month period, and involved:

o Identifying and addressing strategic brand requirements, opportunities and challenges

o Identifying key strengths and weaknesses

• Understanding ChemCentre cost structure and identifying key commercial goals

o Identifying key customers and other stakeholders

• Defining a desirable brand positioning

o Designing a new name and corporate identity

• Appointing a marketing coordinator

o Designing and implementing the marketing communication strategy

o "Selling" the new brand internally and externally

The implementation of the new name and logo not only reflects ChemCentre's capacity, vibrancy and
professionalism, but also highlight its transformation into a commercially focussed organisation with sound business
practices and planning, a restructured balance sheet and well defined financial management drivers. The branding
strategy, in combination with the relocation, will help lift the profile of ChemCentre and establish a firm marketing
base for the organisation.

I welcome the recent appointment of Peter Millington to the position of Chief Executive Officer. Mr Millington's
scientific background, experience in senior public service management and commercial focus auger well for the
future. The Board is now comfortable that it can fulfil its key fiduciary roles in governance (defined by its Board
Charter), risk management and strategic planning while working closely and cooperatively with the new CEO and his
staff as they go about their business of managing the day-to-day activities of ChemCentre.

ChemCentre's most important assets are its people. This is often used as a cliche, but in the case of ChemCentre is
fundamentally true - the key strength of ChemCentre is its intellectual capacity, and staff members are the
custodians of this capacity, and of the intellectual property that it generates. They are the key element in its business
performance, and their health and wellbeing have been of particular interest to the Board. One key element of the
Board charter is to ensure that practices and procedures are in place to ensure, as far as it is possible to do so, that
zero harm comes to ChemCentre staff and the property with which and within which they work. To this end the
Board has encouraged implementation of safer work practices and behaviours, including the monitoring of emotional
impacts experienced by emergency response and frontline forensic staff. Safety, occupational health and a diligent
concern for the environment will always be paramount in ChemCentre's business practices.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank Or Phil Hyde, the inaugural acting CEO of ChemCentre, for his hard work
during the first 21 months of the organisation's autonomous existence. Dr Hyde had the difficult task of managing
the organisation during its transition from government department to statutory authority, with all of the commercial
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soul searching and organisational angst that such transitions always entail. The Board had an excellent working
relationship with Dr Hyde, and recognise that his considerable efforts have helped to put ChemCentre on a sound
footing for the future.

The Board congratulates every individual on the staff of ChemCentre for their achievements so far, and looks forward
to working with the management team to govern and direct the growth of ChemCentre through its difficult (but
exciting) move to Bentley. The coming years present great opportunities as ChemCentre establishes and markets new
standards for excellence in analytical chemistry, forensics and related databases, forges new business, develops its
financial autonomy, boosts its cash flow and builds value for its shareholder and for the people of Western Australia.

Dr Bret Mattes
Chair, ChemCentre Board
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FROM THE CEO

For the year ended 30 June 2009

This Annual Report will be the last delivered from our East Perth premises, as we begin our migration to the new
Resources and Chemistry Precinct at the Curtin University of Technology in Bentley. This custom-built facility will
enhance operations and represents an exciting new phase in ChemCentre's development. The close proximity to
partners including Curtin and CSIRO will create new opportunities for collaboration and help establish a hub of
chemistry expertise in Western Australia.

ChemCentre's business structure features a core of essential services (delivered to and for the government), around
which is wrapped a premium, science-based consultancy (delivering services to both government and private sectors
on a commercial basis). In the past financial year, we have experienced a significant increase in activity for both
components of our business model. As a consultancy, we are moving towards services tailored to clients' needs,
including the development of specific techniques where required.

The key achievements described in this report are a sample of some of the many projects conducted by ChemCentre
over the past financial year. The diversity of the projects is matched only by the number of partnerships on which
many projects centre. Partnerships are critical to ChemCentre's success, and we work collaboratively with a number
of agencies on local, national and international scales. Our involvement in such networks means we are able to
research and implement knowledge and techniques to benefit the Western Australian community.

I must acknowledge the excellent contributions of two of our outgoing staff members: Dr Phil Hyde, Acting CEO and
Mr Gresley (Sandy) Clarkson, Finance Manager. Dr Hyde drove the establishment of ChemCentre as a statutory
authority and the transition towards a more business-like model, something we are striving to achieve. We thank him
for the passion and energy invested in the vision he created for ChemCentre's future. Mr Clarkson was a long-
standing member of the ChemCentre community and made a major contribution towards the transition of
ChemCentre, assisting with the implementation of a new financial management system shortly before his retirement.
We wish both Or Hyde and Mr Clarkson well.

My thanks also to the ChemCentre Board, for their leadership and willingness to share their experiences to guide
ChemCentre's development and success.

Finally, I must thank the ChemCentre staff for their dedication and continuing commitment to excellence. Staff
expertise and skills, including breadth of knowledge, the ability to problem solve and the capacity to think creatively,
allow ChemCentre to deliver the best possible solutions to all clients. Continuation of this approach will assist
ChemCentre in achieving greater success in the coming year.

Mr Peter Millington
Chief Executive Officer
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Providing essential services for the State

Emergency response services
• Strengthened our leadership role within the Chemical Warfare Agent Laboratory Network (CWALN), a

network of State and Territory-based agencies created for localised response to suspected Chemical
Warfare Agents, enhancing WA's counter-terrorism capacity

• Increased our knowledge of best practice in emergency response through establishing strong relationships
with international security agencies, including the Federal Bureau of Investigation (US), and the
Department of Homeland Security (US)

• Participated in briefings with the Department of Foreign Affairs and Trade and Australia-US bilateral talks
regarding chemical security and emergency response

• Invited to participate in a major chemical security study in conjunction with the Department of Homeland
Security (US)

• Responded in a timely and efficient manner to emergency response incidents including:
o Westplan HAZMAT and Westplan Chemical Biological and Radiological (CBR) exercises and call-

outs
o 'White powders' involving unidentified, potentially hazardous substances
o Airport security incidents
o Monitoring for levels of hazardous chemicals (e.g. smoke from the Canning Vale recycling plant

fire)

• Conducted simulated hazardous material release studies, including methods for tracking indoor toxic
chemicals and evacuation or 'Protect in Place' strategies.

Forensic Science services
• Established the Forensic Science Strategic Directions Group with PathWest and WA Police, to provide

strategic advice, guidance and training to forensic staff and practitioners in WA
• Invited to and joined the newly-formed Australia New Zealand Police Advisory Agency - National Institute

of Forensic Science Forum, representing small-medium sized non-police agencies in Australia, providing
advice and guidance on nationally coordinated forensic science strategies and initiatives

• Enhanced understanding and identification of explosives used in security threats through two key projects:
'Manufacture, Characterisation, Neutralisation & Detection ofTATP and Similar Organic Peroxide
Explosives' and 'Portable Multiplexed Electrophoretic and Chromatographic Systems for the Detection and
Identification of Explosives', both funded by the National Security Science and Technology Branch of the
Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet

• Increased support of WA Police's random drug testing program, particularly roadside drug screening
through oral fluid testing

• Managed a four-fold increase in clandestine drug laboratory call outs, ensuring the safe and timely
identification of illicit drugs and on-site management of potentially hazardous materials

• Signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Office of the State Coroner to ensure timely service
provision and improve collaboration and working processes between the two organisations, with over 1300
cases (approximately 10 000 samples) processed for coronial toxicology

• Provided high quality and timely analysis of approximately 10 000 samples covering approximately 3000
forensic cases and yielding more than 6000 evidentiary reports related to criminal toxicology, road traffic
drugs and driving offences, illicit drug seizures and serious crime trace evidence

• Provided expert testimony for the Forensic cases identified above.
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Public health and environmental management
• Worked in consultation with numerous Government departments and the Esperance community on the

monitoring of lead and nickel pollution
• Developed analytical processes required for the reuse of wastewater in WA, including new techniques and

methodologies to identify and measure hundreds of potential contaminants at the highest levels of
accuracy

• Provided rapid crisis response to environmental incidents, e.g. identifying the commercial pesticide
Fenthion as the agent behind sudden bird deaths at the Henderson landfill

• Provided analytical toxicology services to assist the development of addiction treatment regimes

• Provided rapid response to incidents where water storage facilities may have been compromised.

Providing a premium, science-based consultancy
• Maintained our position as the only Australian facility accredited by the National Association of Training

Authorities (NATA) under AS 4760:2006 to conduct drug testing in oral fluids
• Awarded funding to continue as software and programming providers for the development and

maintenance of the European Drug Profiling System
• Completed a scoping study for a national drug profiling system on behalf of the Australian Federal Police

and the Australian Government Attorney-General's Department
• Secured a new three-year contract with Racing and Wagering WA for analytical services
• Joined a panel of technical experts for Hong Kong Accreditation Services (who provide accreditation for

laboratories, certification bodies and inspection bodies) and performed a quality system assessment of
Macau University Racing Laboratory

• Assisted NATA (as Forensic Quality System Experts) with the assessment of other Australian Forensic
facilities for Forensic Accreditation

• Maintained active partnerships with collaborative research groups, including the Collaborative Research
Centre for Contamination, Assessment and Remediation of the Environment (CRC CARE), the Western
Australian Marine Science Institute (WAMSI) and the Australian Seafood Cooperative Research Centre
(Seafood CRC)

• Signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Department of Fisheries to increase influence and
participation in the Seafood CRC and determine long-term collaboration goals

• Increased our ability to support clinical trials through enhanced bioanalytical services, securing projects
including the development of cystic fibrosis biomarkers, pollution exposure studies and anaesthetics for
burns victims

• Continued development and testing of 'Lab-on-Chip' (miniaturisation of existing laboratory techniques for
use in the field), specifically for fast, onsite detection of environmental contaminants

• Developed novel applications of polymerase chain reaction (PCR, a process which amplifies DNA sequences
for analysis), including consumer protection (identifying fish species for truth in labelling) and conservation
(developing a shark DNA database to investigate illegal fishing)

• Contributed to the Department of Agriculture and Food's duty of care when introducing new crops by
investigating photosensitivity-inducing pigments in potential crops for livestock grazing (e.g. Biserrula)

• Upgraded capacity to analyse lipids, with applications including nutritional trans-fatty acid analysis in foods
• Developed major capabilities for new clients, including a thermal desorption technique for volatile organic

compounds for Woodside, and determining lead exposure from ammunition for the Department of
Defence.
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Providing expert solutions
ChemCentre provides solutions, expertise and support for a range of clients and their analytical needs. Below is a
sample of some of the many reports ChemCentre has delivered in the past financial year.

• Alcoa World Alumina Australia- evaluation of bentonite clay
• Alcoa World Alumina Australia, Worsley Alumina, Cooperative Research Centre for the Contamination,

Assessment and Remediation of the Environment (CRC CARE) - determining the concentration of
organometallic compounds in alumina refinery stack emissions and developing identifying methodologies

• Centre for Legumes in Mediterranean Agriculture, The University of Western Australia - chemical profiling
of lupin seed

• CRC CARE -Adsorbed chemical species on respirable Alumina particles
• CRC CARE -Adsorbed chemical species on respirable iron-rich particles
• Department of Environment and Conservation - soil chemistry analysis for the biodiversity Banded Iron

Formation Survey
• Department of Fisheries - aquaculture feed grains program
• Energy Safety, Department of Consumer and Employment Protection - identifying failure of LPG hoses in

auto gas converters in vehicles
• Northern Agricultural Catchments Council - soil carbon measurement
• Rural Industries Research and Development Corporation (RIRDC) - strategic management of total grazing

pressure in semi-arid environments, including trialling a kangaroo deterrent

• RIRDC - utilisation of Near Infrared Reflectance Spectroscopy and DNA fingerprinting for managing

rangeland sustainability

• RIRDC-collection, evaluation and selection of purslane as a potential vegetable crop and source of omega
3 fatty acid

• WA Waste Authority - recycled organics trial, encouraging the golf industry to take strategic waste
initiatives

• Western Australian Marine Science Institute (WAMSI) - biochemical composition of plankton, with relation
to fatty acids

• WAMSI - using fatty acids as biomarkers to trace marine dietary sources
• WAMSI - examination of fatty acids as biomarkers, to quantify the sources of nutrition by reef organisms
• Water Corporation - contract for groundwater replenishment trial analytical work
• Water Corporation - investigating the use of lime-amended bio-solids for soil amendment
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Operational Structure

Enabling Legislation
ChemCentre was established as a statutory authority under the Chemistry Centre (WA) Act, on 1 August 2007.

Responsible Minister
The Hon Troy Buswell MLA, Treasurer and Minister for Housing and Works; Commerce; Science and Innovation

Mission
Applying technical knowledge to practical problems to achieve effective outcomes for communities, governments
and industry.
To paraphrase the functions described in the enabling legislation, within its areas of expertise and in a cost effective
manner, ChemCentre will:

- Manage the government's risks;
- Contribute to state development;
- Contribute to education and knowledge in WA; and
- Operate a successful consulting business.

Organisational Chart

Board

CEO

OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Food & Biological Natural Resources Forensics

------------------- Qorp.p ate3uupP4rt.

Chief Operating Chief Finance
Officer Officer

-------------------------

Board of ChemCentre
Each member of the Board is appointed by the Minister for Industry and Enterprise and selected for the relevant
expertise that each bring. The initial appointments were variously for one, two and three years. Each subsequent
appointment (or re-appointment) will be for three year terms, allowing a staggered rotation of board membership.
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OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Dr Bret Mattes ( Chair)
Originally trained as an oceanographer, Dr Mattes held several positions in Shell, including geoscientist and
exploration manager, before moving in 1990 to BHP Petroleum. Between 1990 and 2007, Dr Mattes held several
roles in BHP Petroleum, finishing his time with that company as Vice-President Australia/Asia Gas & Power, BHP
Billiton. He is now CEO and Managing Director of Star Energy, an Indonesian energy company with interests in
petroleum and geothermal energy.

Prof. Linda Kristjanson (Deputy Chair)
Professor Linda Kristjanson is Deputy Vice Chancellor Research & Development, Curtin University of Technology in
Western Australia. Between 2000 and 2006 she held the position of The Cancer Council WA Chair of Palliative Care.
In this role, Professor Kristjanson created and led the Western Australian Centre for Cancer & Palliative Care.
Professor Kristjanson has received competitive research funding from local and national organisations in Canada, the
USA and Australia. Professor Kristjanson was chosen as the 2002 Australian Telstra Business Woman of the Year for
her entrepreneurial work in science.

Dr Simon Carroll ( Resigned 2008 April)
Dr Carroll has been CEO of an ASX-listed ophthalmic specialty company and Executive Director of the Western
Australian Biomedical Research Institute at Curtin University of Technology and Commercial. He has also held
numerous directorships of private companies and served on a number of boards of management, particularly in the
initiation and growth phases of these organisations. His experience in starting companies, commercialising and
licensing technologies is extensive. Dr Carroll holds a Doctor of Philosophy and a Master of Business Administration
from the University of Western Australia, and is a Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Dr Lianne Cretney-Barnes
Dr Cretney-Barnes has held senior positions in both private and public sector organisations for over 20 years and has
considerable experience in strategic marketing, branding and business development. She has also worked in
communications, recruitment, alumni relations, external and government relations and fundraising. She has won
awards from the Australian Marketing Institute National Awards for Marketing Excellence in both 2002 and 2003. Dr
Cretney-Barnes is also an Associate Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management and the Australian Marketing
Institute, and a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Dr John Farrow
Dr Farrow has more than 25 years experience in hydrometallurgy and has roles of Waterford site manager and
Theme Leader within the Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation (CSIRO). He has worked on
a broad range of collaborative research projects with all key Australian and overseas minerals processing companies,
as well as a range of engineering companies, reagent suppliers and equipment manufacturers. Dr Farrow is a Fellow
of the Australian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy and has received several awards for his research and technology
transfer activities.

Dr Keith Shilkin
Dr Shilkin was the CEO of Pathwest for ten years. Prior to that, he was the Head of Department of Pathology at Sir
Charles Gairdner Hospital and held other Pathology appointments in Perth, Singapore, London and New York. He is
widely published in the professional literature. He has held numerous positions in professional pathology and
associated organisations and committees. He has been active over many years in various community organisations.
Dr Shilkin was this year made a Member of the Order of Australia for services to medicine and the Jewish
Community.

Dr Peter Stransky ( Resigned 2009 February)
Dr Stransky has over 25 years experience as an industrial and production chemist, working mostly with industry on
the Kwinana strip. His roles varied from research scientist to Commercial Manager and he has had considerable
experience in designing and realising commercial industrial projects, including financial, contractual and technical
aspects. Since 2006, he has continued to be involved in business development assignments for minerals and
chemicals companies in his role as an independent consultant.
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OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Mr Peter Millington (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Millington has extensive experience in Corporate Management in the public sector including several years as
acting CEO of the Department of Fisheries.

Administered Legislation
ChemCentre does not administer any Act.

Other Key Legislation Impacting on ChemCentre's Activities
In the performance of its functions, ChemCentre complies with the following relevant written laws:
Auditor General Act 2006;
Contaminated Sites Act 2003;
Disability Services Act 1993;
Equal Opportunity Act 1984;
Financial Management Act 2006;
Freedom of Information Act 1992;
Industrial Relations Act 1979;
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993;
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984;
Public Sector Management Act 1994;
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975;
State Records Act 2000; and
State Supply Commission Act 1991.
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ChemCentre OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Performance Management Framework
Outcome Based Management Framework
Broad, high level government goals are supported at agency level by more specific desired outcomes. Agencies
deliver services to achieve these desired outcomes, contributing to the achievement of the higher level government
goals. The relationship between the government goals, agency level desired outcomes and associated services is
tabulated below.

ChemCentre's effort is divided approximately 25% to services for government and 75% to fee for-service activities,
delivered to government and private sectors.

Government Goal Desired Outcome Services

Social and Environmental Quality independent scientific Service 1. Emergency Response.

Responsibility . Ensuring that advice, research and development, Special technical advice and support

economic activity is managed in a and an emergency response to government, other government

socially and environmentally capability that support Government agencies and industry in managing

responsible manner for the long and the wider community. the risks arising from unmanaged

term benefit of the state. chemical-biological-radiological
releases.

Service 2. Research and
Development
Project-based development of
knowledge, know-how and/or
intellectual property relevant to
state development, public health
and safety, or delivery of
ChemCentre's other services.

Service 3 . Scientific Information
and Advice
Development and delivery of
scientific information and advice, on
a commercial basis, to government,
industry and the community.

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework
ChemCentre has added Service 2 "Research & Development" to its Outcome Based Management Framework since
30 June 2008.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies
ChemCentre's Emergency Response service is largely delivered in support of Fire and Emergency Services Authority,
normally the controlling authority at such emergency events.
ChemCentre also provides an extensive forensic science service to the WA Police and the Coroner.
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Agency Performance - Report on Operations
The twelve months results to 30 June 2009 at ChemCentre, reflect the changes in governance and culture brought
about by the change to a statutory authority on 1 August 2007. There have been significant increases in cost and
revenue compared with budget mainly as a consequence of increased activity both in the government sector and the
private sector.

Financial Targets : Actual performance compared to budget targets
With a history of providing a specialist service to government, at a net cost to government, the results for the twelve
months under review show the cultural and operational changes towards a more commercial operation are starting
to have an effect, with ChemCentre producing a surplus.

Budget Actual
Total Income 8,059,000 10,668,000
Total Cost of Service 13,898,000 14,396,000
Net Cost of Service 5,839,000 3,728,000
Grants & Subsidies from Government 6,239,000 6,138,000
Surplus/(Deficit) before tax for period 400,000 2,410,000

The budget figures could not allow for the salary agreement for the specialised callings, which has a significant effect
on ChemCentre, impacting on the total cost and the grants received from Government.

Key Performance Indicators : Actual performance compared to budget targets
Key Effectiveness Indicators Target Achieved
Client satisfaction 77% 76%
Emergency Response: Resolution Time 4 hr 2.4 hr
Proficiency Rating 95% 95%

Key Efficiency Indicators
Servicel: Average Cost/hour $131 $221
Service 2: Average Cost/hour $136 $233
Service 3:Average Cost/hour $136 $141

Performance information relating to the services provided is presented at pages 44 and 45 of this report.
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES AND TRENDS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Significant Issues and Trends
ChemCentre, through its expertise and knowledge base, is well positioned to contribute to matters of justice, safety,
security and public and environmental health facing the Western Australian community,

Relocation

In 2009, ChemCentre will be relocating to new premises in the Resources and Chemistry Precinct at Bentley. This is
on the Curtin University campus, and adjacent to the CSIRO Australian Minerals Research Centre. The new location
brings the opportunity for increased collaboration and new partnerships, along with considerably improved and
more efficient working conditions for the staff. However, the moving process presents a considerable challenge,
given the size and complexity of both the new building and ChemCentre's operations. Additionally, ChemCentre must
ensure key services remain 'online' during this time.

Security and counter-terrorism
Matters of state and national security and counter-terrorism are issues on a local, national and international scale.
ChemCentre has successfully positioned itself as a leader in the emergency response field, developing protocols for
on-site sampling and analysis. Industrial chemicals play a role in many security incidents; therefore ChemCentre is
able to provide the expertise and experience related to managing these events. This has led to invitations from
national and international agencies (e.g. Homeland Security in the US) to participate in research and exercises.
Participation in national activities and management of incidents is likely to remain at or above current levels into the

future.

Environmental issues
The quality and security of air and water resources are under pressure, leading to increased interest from a range of
industries and sectors in ChemCentre's expertise in these areas. ChemCentre's abilities and methodologies are
developing rapidly, supported by a unique, detailed understanding of localised conditions and state and nation-wide
atmospheric, land and water profiles. ChemCentre has developed an international reputation as a leader in
environmental profiling, based on its sampling and analysis techniques, and the calibre and accuracy of its results.
High value clients and partners will be developed through continuing excellence in this area of consultation.
With the impact of global warming and the looming introduction of an emissions trading scheme, carbon is also of
interest to many sectors. Business related to carbon measurements in air and soil is therefore likely to increase.
More partners and clients will look for chemical solutions to their sustainable resource management issues. The
reuse of waste products generated by the resources industry and municipal processing (e.g. through cement
production or land remediation) is an area ChemCentre continues to provide knowledge and research towards.

Financial environment
As a significant proportion of ChemCentre's turnover is derived from fee-for-service activities, the current financial
environment (both Australian and globally) represents a challenge to its operations. Although public sector activity is
less affected, ChemCentre must identify and develop new lines of business as a way of increasing income.

Research collaborations
ChemCentre has many valuable research partners and in the past year has consolidated relationships with two
Cooperative Research Centres (CRC) - CRC CARE (providing technologies and knowledge related to contamination of
soil, water and air), and the Australian Seafood CRC (provide and generate seafood-related research, development
and solutions). Over the next financial period, these partnerships are predicted to lead to an increase in both profile
and funding.

Forensics and justice
Since the beginning of 2009, there has been a significant increase in the number of clandestine drug laboratories
being attended by ChemCentre staff - nearly double the number of those investigated in previous years. These
investigations demand a lot of staff time and attendances are expected to increase throughout the year.
An increase in cold case reviews and follow-up investigations through the Police is diverting staff resources from the
current criminal case load, and poses a prioritisation or resourcing issue over the coming year.
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Changes in Written Law
There were no changes in Written Law impacting upon ChemCentre in the 2008-09 period.

Likely developments and forecast results of operations
o ChemCentre will position itself as a source of authoritative information on justice, safety, security and

public and environmental health issues, through increased capabilities, timely responses and pursuing new
collaborative relationships.

o The relocation of ChemCentre's facilities to the Resources and Chemistry Precinct provides the opportunity
for increased commercial potential and a strengthening of partnerships, both financially and operationally.

o ChemCentre will continue to build its public profile, as a way of promoting its expertise and facilities to key
stakeholders and potential clients, and in order to inform the wider community of its role and relevance to
the security and wellbeing of Western Australia.
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Financial Statements

Certification of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of ChemCentre have been prepared in compliance
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30th June
2009 and the financial position as at 30th June 2009.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

(Signature)

R Blakey

Chief Finance Officer

Date: 11th September 2009

(Signature)

Member of Accountable Authority
Date: 11th September 2009

(Signature

P Millington

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 11th September 2009

(Signature)

Member of Accountable Authority
Date 11th September 2009
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INCOME

Revenue

Provision of Services

Other revenue

Total Income

EXPENSES

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Supplies and services

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Accommodation expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before grants and subsidies from State Government

Grants and subsidies from State Government

Profit/(Loss) before income tax equivalent expense

Income Tax equivalent benefit/(expense)

Profit/(Loss) after income tax equivalent benefit/expense

Profit/(Loss) for the period

Note

6

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

31(a)

The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2009

12 Months 11 Months
2009 2008
$000 $000

10,666 7,756

2 14

10,668 7,770

8,847 7,125

1,662 1,307

1,003 779

655 631

2,555 1,853

14,722 11,695

(4,054) (3,925)

6,464 3,861

2,410 (64)

(1,163) 16

1,247 (48)

1,247 (48)
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ChemCentre

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Inventories

Prepayments

Receivables

Amounts receivable for Services

Total Current Assets 6,190 3,086

Non-Current Assets

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 19 81 81
Property, plant and equipment 20 3,403 3,223
Intangible assets 21 775 196
Deferred Tax Asset 31 603 483

Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

4,862 3,983

11,052 7,069

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 23 1,794 996
Provisions 24 1,376 1,014
Other current liabilities 25 1,220 1,168

Current Tax Liabilities 31 1,326 62

Total Current Liabilities 5 ,716 3,240

Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 24 465
Deferred Tax Liability 31 19

419

Total Non-Current Liabilities 484 419

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Contributed equity

Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)

TOTAL EQUITY

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2009

Note

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

27(a) 3,791 1,517

15 - 74

17 84 11

16 1,715 1,076

18 600 408

26

6,200 3,659

4,852 3,410

3,653 3,458

1,199 (48)

4,852 3,410
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0' 0ChemCentre ° STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Note

Balance of equity at start of period

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

Balance at start of period

Capital contribution

Other contributions by owner?)

Balance at end of period

RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance of retained earnings at start of period

Profit/(Loss) for the period

Balance at end of period

Balance of equity at end of period

Total income and expense for the period

26

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

3,410

3,458

195 396

3,062

3,653 3,458

(48)

1,247 (48)

1,199 (48)

4,852 3,410

1,247 (48)

(a) Contributions by owners includes the net asset value of assets and liabilities transferred of $2.6 million and a deferred tax asset
of $405k recognised at the point of transfer as at 1 August 2007.
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ChemCentre
(c,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Provision of services

GST receipts on services

Payments

Employee benefits

Accommodation

GST payments on purchases

GST payments to taxation authority

Other payments

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Transferred to Department of Treasury and FinanceM

Purchase of non-current physical assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT

Grants and subsidies

Net cash provided by State Government

Net increase/(decrease ) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

Cash transferred from another Agency")

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT ASSETS AT THE END OF PERIOD

Note

27

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

8,997 8,201

899 831

(8,439 ) (6,918)

(329) (347)

(324) (363)

(592) (468)

(2,317) (2,142)

(2,105) (1,206)

(27)

(1,762) (1,139)

(1,762 ) (1,166)

6,141 3,621

6,141 3,621

2,274 1,249

1,517 -

- 268

3,791 1,517

(a)This was cash transferred to Department of Treasury and Finance and held in an account to fund the payment of the 27`h
payroll which occurs every 11 years. The amount of $54,000 was held as at 1" of August 2007

(b) This cash was transferred from the Department of Industry and Resources

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

CASH FLOW STATENIE? T

For the year ended 30 3 une 2 ,009
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ChemCentre NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

General
ChemCentre's financial statements fort he year ended 30June 2009 have been prepared in accordance with
Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), which comprise a Framework forthe
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and Australian Accounting Standards
(including the Australian Accounting Interpretations).

In preparing these financial statements ChemCentre has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new and revised
Standards and Interpretations from their operative dates as issued by the AASB and formerly the Urgent Issues
Group (UIG).

Early adoption of standards
ChemCentre cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Interpretation unless specifically permitted by
TI 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. No Standards and
Interpretations that have been issued or amended but are not yet effective have been early adopted by ChemCentre
for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2009.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General Statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer's instructions. Several of
these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's Instructions are legislative provisions governing the preparation
of financial statements and take precedence over the Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of
that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
($'000).

The initial application of Australian Accounting Standards that have been used in the process of applying accounting
policies in the financial statements are included at Note 4 'Initial Application of Australian Accounting Standards'.

The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are included at Note 3 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty'.

(c) Contributed Equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 'Contribution by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' requires transfers,
other than the result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, in the nature of equity contributions to be
designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by the owners (at the time of, or priorto transfer)
before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital contributions (appropriations) have been
designated as contributions by owners by Treasury Instruction (TI) 955 'Contributions by Owners made to Wholly
Owned Public Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

Transfers of Net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and none
reciprocal. See Note 26 'Equity'.
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For the year envied 30 June 2009

Transfers of net assets to/from other agencies as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements are
accounted for as distributions to owners and contributions by owners respectively. Refer to Note 26 'Equity'.

(d) Reporting Entity
.The reporting entity comprises the Chemistry Centre (WA) referred to as ChemCentre. There are no Related Bodies -
see note 34'Related Bodies'.

(e) Income
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major

business activities as follows:

Rendering of services
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction.

Service Appropriations
Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered. The appropriation revenue
comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable holding account comprises the depreciation
expense for the period and any agreed increase in leave liability during the period

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when ChemCentre obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions,
usually when cash is received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be
purchased if not donated.

Where contributions are recognised as revenues during the reporting period and were obtained on the condition
that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were
undischarged as at the balance sheet date, the nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those undischarged conditions
are disclosed in the notes as Revenue in Advance. See Note 25

Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the
disposal of non-current assets.

(f) Income Tax
ChemCentre operates within the National Tax Equivalent Regime ("NTER") whereby an equivalent amount in respect
of income tax is payable to the WA Treasury. The calculation of the liability in respect of income tax is governed by
NTER guidelines and directions approved by Government.
As a consequence of participation in the NTER, ChemCentre is required to comply with AASB 112 'Income Taxes'.
The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rate expected to apply when
the assets are recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively enacted.
The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences to
measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary
differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did
not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly
in equity.

(g) Property , Plant and Equipment and Infrastructure
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
items of property, plant and equipment costing $400 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets
is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing
under $400 are capitalised only if they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total. Otherwise
they are expensed direct to the Income Statement.
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Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, cost is their fair value at the date
of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, ChemCentre uses the cost model forall property, plant and equipment. All items of
property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a
manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.
Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

Plant and equipment 5 to 7 years
Office equipment 5 years
Software(a) 2.5 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 7 years

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware.

(h) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $400 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or
more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) overtheir useful life. Costs incurred of
less than $400 are immediately expensed directly to the Income Statement.

All acquired and internally developed intangible assets are initially measured at cost. For assets acquired at no cost
or for nominal cost, cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit
(estimated useful life) on the straight line basis using rates which are reviewed annually. All intangible assets
controlled by ChemCentre have a finite useful life and zero residual value. The expected useful lives for each class of

intangible asset are:

Software(a) 3 to5 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. Software that
is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $400 is
expensed in the year of acquisition.

(i) Impairment of Assets
Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As ChemCentre is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset
has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and depreciated replacement cost.

is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or
expiration of asset's future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset's depreciation is materially understated, I
where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets
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Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at each balance sheet date irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no
risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value
is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at each balance
sheet date.

See note 22 'Impairment of assets' for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.
See note 2(n) Receivables' and note 16 Receivables' for impairment of receivables.

(j) Leases
ChemCentre does not currently hold any operating leases (see Note 41). Lease payments will be expensed on a
straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties.

(k) Financial Instruments
In addition to cash and cash equivalents, ChemCentre has two categories of financial instrument:

• Loans and Receivables;
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These have been disaggregated into the following classes:

Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services

Financial Liabilities
• Payables

Initial recognition and measurement is at fair value. The transaction cost or face value is equivalent to the fair value.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no
interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

(I) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes restricted cash and cash
equivalents. These includes cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Inventories
ChemCentre adopts a "Just in Time" system of purchasing and since 1 April 2009 has expensed all purchases on
receipt. In the previous year Inventories were measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs were
assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a
first in first out basis. Inventories not held for resale were valued at cost unless they were no longer required, in
which case they were valued at net realisable value. See note 15 'Inventories'

(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts
(i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as
uncollectible are written off against the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that ChemCentre will not be able to collect its debts. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See note 2(k) 'Financial Instruments'and
note 16 'Receivables'.

(o) Payables
Payables are recognised when ChemCentre becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of
assets or services at the amounts payable. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally
settled within 30 days. See note 2(k) 'Financial Instruments and note 23 Payables'.

(p) Provisions
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Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date. See note 24 'Provisions'.

(i) Provisions - Employee Benefits

Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months afterthe balance
sheet date is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. Leave liabilities are in respect of services provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels
including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long

service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the balance sheet
date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as
ChemCentre does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

Purchased Leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement
to self-fund up to an additional four weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of
salary set aside for employees and is measured at the nominal amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave.

Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) in accordance with legislative requirements
administers the following superannuation schemes.

Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new
members, orto the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme also
closed to new members.

ChemCentre has no liabilities underthe Pension orGSS Schemes. The liabilities forthe unfunded Pension
and GSS Schemes transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme are
assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made
by ChemCentre to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS Scheme
obligations

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension
or the GSS Schemes became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).
Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super
Scheme (GESBS). Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. ChemCentre makes concurrent
contributions to GESB on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government's
Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These contributions extinguish the liability for
superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GSS Schemes, and is recouped by the
Treasurer for the employer's share.

See also note 2(q) 'Superannuation expense'.

(ii) Provisions - Other
Employment On-Costs
Employment on-costs, including workers ' compensation insurance and payroll tax, are not employee
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they
relate has occurred . Employment on-costs are not included as part of ChemCentre's 'Employee benefits
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expense' and the related liability is included in Employment on-costs provision. See note 13 'Other
expenses' and note 24'Provisions'.

(q) Superannuation Expense
The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the Income Statement:

(a) Defined benefits plans - For 2007-08, the change in the unfunded employer's liability (i.e. current service
cost and, actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer in respect of current employees who are
members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that
Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and

(b) Defined contribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), and the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).

Defined benefit plans -For 2007-08, the movements (i.e. current service cost and, actuarial gains and losses) in the
liabilities in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS transfer benefits are recognised as expenses. As these
liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer, a revenue titled 'Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer' equivalent to the
expense is recognised under Income from State Government in the Income Statement. Commencing 2008 - 09, the
reporting of annual movements in these notional liabilities has been discontinued and is no longer recognised in the
Income Statement

The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the
cost of services provided in the current period.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting.
However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the agency to GESB extinguishes the agency's obligations
to the related superannuation liability.

See also note 2(p) 'Provisions - Employee Benefits' under Superannuation.

(r) Accrued Salaries
Accrued Salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are
settled soon after the financial year end. ChemCentre considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be
equivalent to the net fair value. (refer note 24 'Provisions')
The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 19 'Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents') consists of amounts paid
annually into a suspense account over a period of 10 years to largely meet the additional cash flow in each eleventh
year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this account.

(s) Amounts Receivable for Services ( Holding Account)
ChemCentre receives appropriation funding on an accrual basis that recognises the full annual cash and non cash
cost of services. The appropriations are paid partly in cash and partly as an asset that is accessible on the emergence
of the cash funding requirement to cover items such as leave entitlements and asset replacement.

(t) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost
Resources received free of charge orfor nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income and as
assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value.

(u) Segment Information
Segment information has been disclosed by service (refer note 40 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service')

(v) Comparative Period
The ChemCentre became a Statutory Authority on 1 August 2008 and the comparative period to 30 June 2008 in the
Income Statement is for a period of 11 months only, compared to the 12 months for the current period to 30 June
2009. Comparative figures are where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the
current financial year.
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3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key estimates and assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year include:

o Discount rates used in estimating provisions for LSL;
o Estimating useful life and residual values of key assets and intangible assets;
o Long service leave - retention rates and discount rates; and

4. Initial Application of Australian Accounting Standards

ChemCentre has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008 that impacted on ChemCentre:

Review of AAS 27 'Financial Reporting by Local Governments', 29 'Financial Reporting by
Government Departments' and 31 'Financial Reporting by Governments'. The AASB has
made the following pronouncements from its short term review of AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS
31:

AASB 1004 'Contributions';

AASB 1050 'Administered Items';

AASB 1051 'Land Under Roads';

AASB 1052 'Disaggregated Disclosures';

AASB 2007-9 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the review of
AASs 27, 29 and 31 [AASB 3, AASB 5, AASB 8, AASB 101, AASB 114,AASB 116, AASB 127 &
AASB 137]; Interpretation 1038 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public
Sector Entities.

The existing requirements in AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31 have been transferred to the
above new and revised topic-based Standards and Interpretation. These requirements
remain substantively unchanged. AASB 1050, AASB 1051 and AASB
1052 do not apply to Statutory Authorities. The other Standards and Interpretation make
some modifications to disclosures and provide additional guidance, otherwise, there is no
financial impact.
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5 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

ChemCentre cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian
Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted byTI 1101 'Application of
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. Consequently,
ChemCentre has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations that have been issued and which may impact
ChemCentre but are not yet effective. Where applicable, ChemCentre's plans to apply
these Standards and Interpretations from their application date:

Title Operative for reporting
periods beginning
on/after

AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements' (September 1 January 2009
2007). This Standard has been revised and will change the
structure of the financial statements. These changes will
require that owner changes in equity are presented
separately from non-owner changes in equity. ChemCentre
does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is
first applied.

AASB 2008-13 'Amendments to Australian Accounting 1 July 2009
Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 17 -
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners [AASB 5 &
AASB 110]. This Standard amends AASB S 'Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations' in respect
of the classification, presentation and measurement of non-
current assets held for distribution to owners in their
capacity as owners. ChemCentre does not expect any
financial impact when the Standard is first applied
prospectively.

AASB 2009-2 'Amendments to Australian Accounting 1 July 2009
Standards- Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments' [AASB 4, AASB 7, AASB 1023, & AASB 1038].
'These Standards Amend AASB 7 and will require enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurements and liquidity risk
with respect to financial instruments' - ChemCentre does
not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first
applied.
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Note

6. Provision of services
Private Sector

State Government Sector

ChemCentre invoices clients on a fee for service basis for work performed. The clients are
Organisations in the Private Sector and Western Australian State Government Agencies.

ChemCentre provides essential services for the state of WA as well as
fee for service forensic science and premium science based consultancy
to industry and government.

7. Commonwealth grants and contributions

8. Other revenue
Expense recovery

Salary Packaging recoveries

5,039

5,627

11 Months
2008
$000

4,490

3,266

10,666 7,756

2

2 14

9. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a) 6,938 5,769
Superannuation -defined contribution plans 697 607

Long service leave (b) 846 176

Annual Leave (b) 366 573

8,847 7,125

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component.

(b) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance and payroll tax are included at note 13 'Other
Expenses'. The employment on-costs liability is included at note 24 'Provisions'.

10. Supplies and Services
Communications

Consumables

Materials

Travel

23

1,264

203

172

1,662 1,307

11. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation
Plant, equipment and vehicles

Office Equipment

Amortisation

Software

792

117

28

998

132

149

644

99

909 743

94 36

1,003
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ChemCentre NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30June 2009

Note

12. Accommodation expenses
Property rent [see Note 14(b)]

Repairs and maintenance

Utilities

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

326 284

102 122

227 225

655 631

13. Other expenses

Equipment repairs and maintenance
IT& Network Maintenance

Laboratory Services

Printing and Stationery

Payments to Cooperative Research Centres

Motor Vehicle

Doubtful Debts

Payroll Tax ")

Consultant Fees

Other minor Expenses

325

204

530

74

195

69

(2)

813

71

276

154

146

564

99

188

70

55

352

14

211

2,555 1,853

(a) As at the date of this report, ChemCentre is not registered for Payroll Tax. However, under the Chemistry Centre
(WA) Act 2007, the Chemcentre is liable for all taxes, imposts and duties. As a consequence the ChemCentre has
accrued $813,000 for payroll tax previously treated as a notional tax. This will be paid in 2009 following registration
for payroll tax with the Office of State Revenue. The amount expensed in the current year under review comprises
$349,000 in respect of the year ending 30 June 2008, $425,000 in respect of the year ending 30 June 2009 and
$38,000 in penalties. The probability of paying Payroll Tax was not considered in the ChemCentre's estimates and
may recoverable by the ChemCentre from Treasury appropriations following the mid-year review in November 2009.

14. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the period

Service Appropriation1'l 6,138 3,225

Resources received free of charge for rent (b) 326 284

Notional Payroll Tax recovered (b - 352

6,464 3,861

(a) Service appropriations are accrual amounts reflecting the net cost of services delivered. The appropriation

revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable holding account comprises the
depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liability during the year

(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, ChemCentre recognises
revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably
determined and which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as
assets or expenses, as applicable. The exception occurs where the contribution of assets or services are in the
nature of contributions by owners, in which case ChemCentre makes the adjustment direct to equity

15. Inventories
Inventories not held for resale:

Stores (at cost) - 74

74

See also note 2(m) 'Inventories'

ChemCentre Page 31 of 52 Annual Report 2009



ChemCentre NOTES TO THE F1NANC411 STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Note

16. Receivables

Current

Receivables Trading

Receivables Sundry

GST Receivable

Allowance for impairment of receivables

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of
receivables:

Balance at start of period

Reduction in amounts provided for during the period

Amount recovered during the period

Balance at end of period

11 Months
2008
$000

1,366 1,077

349 -

61 71

(61) (72)

1,715 1,076

72

61 72

Credit Risk

Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired based on the information provided to senior management, at

the balance sheet date:

Not more than 3 months 108 108

More than 3 months but less than 6 months 118 20

More than 6 months but less than 1 year 86 78

More than 1 year 138 4

Receivables individually determined as impaired at the balance sheet
date:
Carrying amount, before deducting any impairment loss 61 65

Provision for Impairment loss (61) (65)

Included in the allowance for impairment of receivables, ChemCentre has some debtors the age of which
places doubt on their recoverability. A general provision has been made against these debts.

See also note 2(n) 'Receivables' and note 30 'Financial Instruments'.

17. Prepayments
Current

Moneys paid in advance for services to be performed 84 11

18. Amounts Receivable for Services
Current

Represents the non-cash component of Services appropriations. It is
restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment
of leave liability.

12 Months
2009
$000

600 408
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19. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accrued Salaries Suspense Account (-)

Note

(a) Amount held in the suspense account and only to be used for the purposes of
meeting the 27`h payroll in financial years which occur every eleven years

20. Property, plant and equipment
Plant, equipment and vehicles

At cost

Accumulated depreciation

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

81 81

9,602 8,837

(6,317) (5,803)

3,285 3,034

Office equipment

At cost

Accumulated depreciation

Written down Value of plant,equipment and office equipment

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant,
equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting

period are set out below.

Plant,
equipment

and
vehicles

685 644

(567) (45S)

118 189

3,403 3,223

Office
equipment

Tota I

2008

Carrying amount 1" August 2007

Transfers

Additions

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

2009

Carrying amount 1" July 2008

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

$1000 $1000 $1000

2,783 239 3,022

895 49 944

(644) (99) (743)

3,034 189 3,223

3,034 189 3,223

1,043 46 1,089

(792) (117) (909)

3,285 118 3,403
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ChemCentrPe NOTES'TO THE FINANCIAL.STATEMEN'TS

For the year ended 30 .June 200!3

Note

21. Intangible assets
Laboratory Information Management Computer software
development

At cost

Accumulated amortisation

Carrying amount at end of year

Reconciliation

Computer software

Opening Carrying amount

Transfers

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation expense

Carrying amount at end of year

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

1,058 232

(283) (36)

775 196

196

673

36

196

(94) (36)

775 196

22. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to Property, plant and equipment, and Intangible assets at
30 June 2009.

ChemCentre held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period and

at balance sheet rate there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2009 have either been classified as non-current assets held for sale or written-off.

23. Payables
Current

Trade payables

GST Payable

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Superannuation

531 756

104 76

1,118 6

41 158

1,794 996
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

Note

24. Provisions
Current

Employee benefits provision

Annual leave(.)

Long service leave (b)

12 Months
2009
$000

719

657

11 Months
2008
$000

433

581

1,376 1,014

Non-current

Long service leave (b)

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:

465 419

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 593 413

More than 12 months after balance sheet date 126 20

719 433

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet
date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 605 146

More than 12 months after balance sheet date 517 854

1,122 1,000

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs

including workers' compensation premiums and payroll tax. The provision is measured at the present value of
expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost),

is included at Note 13 'Other expenses'.

25. Other liabilities
Current

Revenue received in Advance 1,220 1,168

Revenue in advance relates to funds received from clients in respect of
work to be completed within the following 12 months.

1,220 1,168
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For the year ended 30 dune 2009

Note

26. Equity

Contributed equity

Balance at the start of the period

Contributions by owners

Capital Contribution

Transfer of Net Assets from Department of Industry and Resources

Balance at end of period

Retained Earnings /(Accumulated Losses)

Balance at start of period

Profit for the period

Balance at end of period

27. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

(a) Reconciliation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is
reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash held with Commonwealth Bank

Cash on hand

(b) Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalents to net cash flows provided
by/(used in) operating activities

Profit after income tax equivalents

Non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Grants and subsidies from Government
Amounts credited to provision for income tax equivalents

(Increase)/decrease in assets:

Current receivables

Current inventories

Amounts receivable for services and prepayments

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:

Current payables

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Salaries

Employee Benefits

Revenue in Advance

Net GST receipts/(payments)

Change in GST in receivables/payables

Net cash (used in) operating activities

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

3,458

195

3,653

396

3,062

3,458

(48)

1,247

1,199

3,790

1

(48)

(48)

3,791

1,247

(6,138)

1,163

(813)

74

(73)

(12)

1,112

(117)

408

52

592

(592)

(2,105)

1,517

(48)

779

55

(3,225)

(403)

686

6

138

69

612

468

(468)

(1,206)

rr
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ChemCentre

Note

On 1" August 2007, ChemCentre was set up as a stand alone statutory authority. The
net cash balance transferred was $293k . The assets and liabilities transferred from
the Department of Industry and Resources are listed below:

Property Plant and Equipment

Inventories

Accounts Receivable

Prepayments

Accounts Payable

Revenue in Advance

Employee Entitlements

Net Assets

12 Months
2009
$000

28. Resources received free of charge
During the period the following resources were received free of charge for functions outside
the normal operations of ChemCentre:

Payroll Tax accrued for costing purposes only at 5% of salary

Rent accrued for costing purposes only based on estimated rent for
premises

326

11 Months
2008
$000

3,053

74

1,504

28

(70)

(686)

(1,507)

2,396

352

284

326 636

No payment is made for either item

29. Explanatory statement
This statement provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2009.
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $50,000

Significant variances between estimate and actual results for the financial period

IncomeW

Employee Benefits (b)

Supplies and Services")

Accommodation Expenses (d)

2009

Estimate

$'000's

8,059

7,145

3,839

2,300

2009

Actual

$'000's

10,668

8,847

1,662

665

Variation

$'000's

2,609

(1,702)

2,177

1,635

(a) Income: Exceeded budget due to greater commercial activity than estimated.

(b) Employee Benefits: The increase reflects increases in staff complement to achieve improved income figures.

(c) Supplies and Services: The decrease in supplies and services costs reflects a much lower spending on

consumables than anticipated in the estimates.

(d) Accommodation Expenses: Estimates reflected an earlier move to ChemCentre's new premises at a higher rental

cost. ChemCentre is not expected to move to new premises until September 2009.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009
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Note

29. Explanatory statement (Continued)
Significant variances between actual and prior year actual - revenues and expenditures

IncomeW

Employee Benefits(bi

Supplies and Services")

2008

Actual

$'000's

7,770

7,125

1,307

12 Months
2009
$000

2009

Actual

$'000's

10,668

8,847

1,662

Variation

$'000's

2,898

(1,722)

(355)

(a) Income: Exceeded actual last year due to greater commercial activity and greater volume sales than previous

year.

(b) Employee Benefits: The increase reflects increases in staff complement to achieve improved income figures.

(c) Supplies and Services: The increase reflects the volume of commercial cases completed by ChemCentre and new
service agreements to maintain a greater number of fixed assets than previous year. Also consumables and
chemicals for the laboratories increased significantly.

30. Financial Instruments Disclosures
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by ChemCentre are cash and cash equivalents, and receivables and payables.
ChemCentre has limited exposure to financial risks. ChemCentre's overall risk management program focuses on
managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of ChemCentre's receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to ChemCentre.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is
the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment. ChemCentre trades only with
recognised, creditworthy third parties. ChemCentre has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and
services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis with the result that ChemCentre's exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk.

Provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on objective evidence such as observable data
indicating changes in client credit ratings. For financial assets that are either past due or impaired, refer to Note 16

'Receivables'.

Liquidity risk

ChemCentre is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. Liquidity risk arises
when ChemCentre is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

ChemCentre has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that
sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market Risk

ChemCentre has no exposure to market risk

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments

In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities at the balance sheet date are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

11 Months
2008
$000
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ChemCentre NOTES TO THE FINANCIA1 STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 3 une 2009

30. Financial Instruments Disclosures (Continued)
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans and Receivables

Restricted Cash and cash equivalents

Note

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost roi

(a) The amount of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost excludes GST payable to the
ATO (statutory payable).

Interest Rate Risk

ChemCentre does not hold any interest bearing deposits or pay interest on any loans. Therefore
there is no interest rate risk.

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are
carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable

approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

31. Taxation Equivalent
(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Prior Year under/(over) provision

Net Current and Deferred Tax transferred to Income Statement

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax
payable

Profit/(loss) before income tax equivalents

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating
taxable income:
Doubtful Debts not claimed

Inventories

Accounting Depreciation on tax fixed assets incl R&D assets

Net movement in provisions
Accrual not incurred
Non-Deductible pre transitional LSL payments

Total Add back items

Tax effect of amounts which are deductible in calculating
taxable income:
Depreciation -tax (excluding R&D assets)

Reduction in Bad Debts Provision

Investment Allowance deduction

Provisions - employee benefits actually paid

Deductions

Assessable Income

Income Tax expected to be paid at Statutory Rate (30%)

(c) Current Tax Liability

Opening Balance as 1 July 2008

Current tax

Under provision previous year

Closing balance as 30 June 2009

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

3,791 1,517

1,715 1,076

81 81

1,794 996

1,148 62

(101) (78)

116 -

1,163 (16)

2,410 (64)

64

74 -

1,003 779

436 285

813 -

127 -

2,453 1,128

(1,003) (779)

(11) -

(23) -

(78)

(1,037) (857)

3,826

1,148

(62)

207

62

(1,148) (62)

(116)

(1,326) (62)
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year ended 30June 2009

Note

31. Taxation Equivalent (Continued)

(d) Deferred Tax Assets
Opening Balance as 1 July 2008

Credited/(Charged) to Income Statement

Closing balance as 30 June 2009

(e) Deferred Tax Liabilities

Opening Balance as 1 July 2008

Accrued Salaries

Closing balance as 30 June 2009

12 Months
2009
$000

483

120

11 Months
2008
$000

483

603 483

(19)

(19)

32. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority
The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries,
superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within
the following bands are

1-10,000

10,001- 20,000

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority is:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred
by ChemCentre in respect of members of the accountable authority.

No members of the accountable authority are members of the Pension

Scheme.

Remuneration of Senior Officers

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of
the accountable authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following
bands are:

110,001-120,000

130,001-140,000

140,001-150,000

170,001- 180,000

180,001-190,000

The total remuneration of senior officers is:

4 3

2 2

$67,850 $50,000

1

3

2

1

$615,000 $550,000

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by ChemCentre

in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority.

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
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For the year ended30.3une 2009

Note

33. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General fort he financial period is as follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators

The expense is included at note 13 'Other expenses'.

34. Related bodies
There are no related bodies

35. Affiliated bodies
There are no affiliated bodies

36. Special purpose accounts
There are no special purpose accounts

38. Supplementary financial information
Write-Offs

There was no public property written off by ChemCentre during the financial
period

Losses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes

Losses of public money and public and other property through theft or default

Amounts recovered

Gifts of Public Property

Gifts of public property provided by ChemCentre

39. Capital Commitments
There were no Capital Commitments as at 30 June 2009

12 Months
2009
$000

11 Months
2008
$000

35 38
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Fnr the year ended 30.June 2009

40. Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service

Service 1 Service 2 Service 3 Total

Emergency Research and Scientific

Response development Information
Management and Advice

2008 2008 2008 2008

$'000's $1000 ' s $'000 ' s $'000's
INCOME

Provision of services

Other Income

Total income

499 7,257 7,756

14 14

499 7 ,271 7,770

EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense - - 7,125 7,125

Supplies and services - - 1,307 1,307

Depreciation and amortisation expense - - 779 779

Accommodation expenses - - 631 631

Other expenses 499 - 1,354 1,853

Total expenses 499 11,196 11,695

Profit/(loss) before grants and subsidies from State
Government

Grants and subsidies from State Government

Profit/(Loss ) after Grants and Subsidiaries from State
Government

Profit/( Loss ) before income tax equivalents benefit

Income tax equivalent benefit/(expense)

Profit/( Loss ) for the period

(3,925) (3,925)

3,861 3,861

(64) (64)

(64) (64)

16 16

(48) (48)
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Service 1 Service 2 Service 3 Total

Emergency Research and Scientific

Response development Information

Management and Advice

INCOME

Provision of services

Other Income

2009 2009 2009 2009

$'OOO's $'000's $'000's $'000'5

858 1,980 7,828 10,666

2 2

Total income 858 1,980 7,830 10,668

EXPENSES

Employee benefits expense 658 1,625 6,564 8,847

Supplies and services - - 1,662 1,662

Depreciation and amortisation expense - - 1,003 1,003

Accommodation expenses - - 655 655

Other expenses 200 355 2,000 2,555

Total expenses 858 1,980 11,884 14,722

Profit/( loss) before grants and subsidies from State
Government

Grants and subsidies from State Government

Profit/( loss) after Net Appropriation from State Government

(4,054) (4,054)

6,464 6,464

2,410 2,410

Profit/( Loss) before income tax equivalents expense 2,410 2,410

Income tax equivalent benefit/( expense) (1,163) (1,163)

Profit/( Loss) for the period 1,247 1,247

41. Contingent Liability

The Minister of Housing and Works and Curtin have entered into an Agreement to Lease with Curtin as the Landlord
and ChemCentre as the Tenant for a period of 20 years with four five year options. The execution of a Lease
Agreement between ChemCentre and the Minister of Housing and Works is contingent upon practical completion of
the building. At the date of this report and subsequent to balance date the building has not been completed in
accordance with the Agreement to Lease and ChemCentre has no present obligation to pay rent. On signing the lease
or following practical completion of the building, whichever comes first, the ChemCentre has an obligation to pay
monthly rent over 20 years to cover ChemCentre's 39% share of the cost of the building at $39.7 million plus interest
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Key Performance Indicators
Certification of Key Performance Indicators

I hereby certify that the performance indicators are based pr records, are relevant and appropriate for
assisting users to assess C res nce, and fail represent the performance of ChemCentre for the
year ended 31'' June 20D9.,

Member of Governing Board
Date: 3rd September 2009

' (Signature)

Member of Governing Board
Date: 3rd September 2009

Government Goa!
Social and environmental responsibility
Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long term
benefit of the State.

Agency Level Government Desired Outcome:
Quality independent scientific advice, research and development, and an emergency response capability that
supports government and the wider community.

Service 1 : Emergency Response Management

Specialist technical advice and support to government and industry in managing the risks arising from
unmanaged chemical-biological-radiological releases.

2007-08 2008-09 2008-09

Key Effectiveness Indicator Actual Actual Target

Average Resolution Time for all emergency response incidents
attended: extracted from the response team log book

Key Efficiency Indicator

Total cost for service

Billable hours: as calculotedfor the average staffing over the period

Average Cost per Chargeable Hour (al

2.3 hr 2.4 hr 4 hr

$499,000 $858,000 $880,000

3,753 hr 3,883 hr

$133 $221 $131

Service 2: Research and [bevel ntt"

Project-based development of knowledge, know-how and/or intellectual property relevant to state
development, public health and safety, or delivery of ChemCentre's other services.

Key Effectiveness Indicator(c)

Aggregated value of the ChemCentre components of research and N/A N/A N/A

development projects: extracted from projects.

Key Effic iency Indicator

Total cost for service N/A $1,980,000 $2,500,000

Billable hours: as calculated for the average staffing over the period 8,500 hr

Average Cost per Chargeable Hour"s N/A $233 $136
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Service 3: Ce rao ercia Scientific Information and Advice

Development and delivery of scientific information and advice, including commercial services, to
government, industry and the community.

2007-08 2008-09 2008-09

Key Effectiveness Indicators Actual Actual Target

Client Satisfaction: as determined by a quarterly survey of clients randomly
selected from the invoices sent out in the preceding quarter . The survey covered
32 organisations with 100% response rate and representing about 15% of all
clients we dealt with in the preceding quarter.

82% 76%

Proficiency Rating for the Accredited Services: as determined from the
aggregate of all external proficiency trials undertaken during the relevant
period. This relates to the percentage of all quantitative trial results that were
less than 2 standard deviations from the mean of the results reported by all
laboratories in the respective trials.

94% 95%

77%

95%

Key Efficiency Indicator

Total cost for service $11,196,000 $11,884,000 $11,398,000

Billable hours: as calculated for the average staffing over the period 84,109 hr 84,109 hr

Average Cost per Chargeable Hour") $133 $141 $136 1

Notes:

(a) The average cost per chargeable hour in the current year is based on the total cost of service, whereas the previous year
and targets are based on salary cost only per chargeable hour and hence the significant increase in the average cost per
chargeable hour in the current year. Chargeable hours in service 1 and 2 are the actual hours recorded and extracted
from laboratory records and charged against those services. The chargeable hours for service level 3 are calculated and
based on Full Time Equivalents.

(b) Service level 2 - Research and Development is a new KPI and comparative figures for the previous year are not available.
(c) Service level 2 - Research and Development has two components, which will be measured to determine aggregated

value. The first is the combined total of external funding and internal ChemCentre spending. The second is the portion of
Research and Development funded internally by the ChemCentre. In future years a target ratio between internal and
external funded Research and Development will be set.
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Chem Centre GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Ministerial Directives [TI 903(12)]
No Ministerial directives were received during the financial period.

Other Financial Disclosures

Pricing policies of services provided
ChemCentre has discretion overpricing for goods and services rendered.

Employment and Industrial Relations

Staff Profile

2008-09 2007-08

Full-time permanent 84 76

Full-time contract 28 19

Part-time measured on a FTE basis - 6

Staff Development
The Statutory Authority has a commitment to the development of its employees. Our strategies are to
build a highly skilled, professional and fair workforce with the ability to adapt to changing business
technology and the environment.
During the financial period, staff spent in excess of $171,000 on in-house and external training
compared with $150,000 in 2008.
Workers Compensation
Two compensation claims of a minor nature were recorded during the financial period.

Governance Disclosures

Contracts with Senior Officers
At the date of reporting, other than normal contracts of employment of service, no Senior Officers, or
firms of which Senior Officers are members, or entities in which Senior Officers have substantial
interests had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with ChemCentre and Senior Officers.
Insurance premiums paid to indemnify members of the Board
An insurance policy has been taken out to indemnify members of the Board against any liability
incurred under sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996. The
amount of the insurance premium paid for 2008/2009 was $5,090 compared with $4,000 in
2007/2008.
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ChemCentre OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Other Legal Requirements

Compliance with Public Sector Management Act Section 31(1)
1. In the administration of ChemCentre, I have complied with the Public Sector Standards in Human

Resource Management, the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and our Code of Conduct.
2. 1 have put in place procedures designed to ensure such compliance and conducted appropriate internal

assessments to satisfy myself that the statement made in 1. is correct.
3. The applications made for breach of standards review and the corresponding outcomes for the reporting

period are:
Number lodged: 1
Number of breaches found, including details of multiple breaches per application: nil
Number still under review: nil

P. Millington
Chief Executive Officer
1 August 2009

Electoral Act 1907 section 175ZE
In compliance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, ChemCentre is required to report on expenditure
incurred during the financial period in relation to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling
organisations, direct mail organisations and media advertising organisations.

The details of the report are as follows:
Expenditure with Advertising Agencies
Expenditure with Market Research Agencies $30,945

Rubis Pty Ltd

Expenditure with Polling Agencies
Expenditure with Direct Mail Agencies
Expenditure with Media Advertising Agencies

Marketforce Express & Adcorp
$4,344

TOTAL EXPENDITURE $35,289
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OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Annual Estimates
Section 40 of the FMA provides for the accountable authority of a statutory authority to submit annual
estimates of the annual operations of the statutory authority to the Minister for approval.
The estimates are to be prepared and submitted to the Minister at such times as determined by the
Treasurer, or no later than three months before the commencement of the next financial year.
Statutory authorities not funded as a separate Division of the Consolidated Account Expenditure Estimates
should include the approved annual estimates for the current financial period in the annual report of the
preceding financial year submitted to the responsible Minister under the provisions of section 61 of the Act.

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
ChemCentre's Disability Access and Inclusion Plans (DAIPs) was placed in Public Notices 3 December 2008.
Current initiatives address the following desired DAIP outcomes:
1. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, and any events
organised by, a public authority.

2. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and other facilities of a
public authority.

3. People with disabilities receive information from a public authority in a format that will enable them to access the
information as readily as other people are able to access it.

4. People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of a public authority as other
people receive from the staff of that public authority.

5. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to a public authority.

6. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public consultation by a
public authority

Recordkeeping Plans
ChemCentre complies with the State Records Act 2000.
Targets set for 2008/2009 to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of ChemCentre's recordkeeping system were
completed as follows:

1. The review of functional titles resulted in some changes to titling but to ensure relevance to the agency's
needs is an ongoing activity.

2. During the induction phase, all new employees are advised on their obligations to keep full and accurate
records.

3. Staff responsibilities are included in the ChemCentre Newsletter.

An evaluation of the efficiency and effectiveness of the ChemCentre's recordkeeping systems will be evaluated by
December 2009. This will include a review of the training program.
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ChemCentre OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Government Policy Requirements

Corruption Prevention
ChemCentre has appropriate risk management policies in place that incorporate strategies to minimise the risk of
fraud, misconduct and corruption. These include policies and procedures for:

• Confidentiality and Release of Official Information
o Expenditure on Official Hospitality
• Conflict of interest
• Staff induction

These policies and education of staff have helped develop a culture of awareness relating to potential fraud,
corruption and misconduct.
Substantive Equality

Chemistry Centre is not a member of the Strategic Management Council and therefore is not required to report on
Substantive Equality.

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management
ChemCentre has policies and procedures committing it to sound occupational health and safety and injury
management practices. All new employees receive an intensive safety induction. An ongoing program of safety
training is carried out on a monthly basis.
The Occupational Safety and Health Committee, including safety representatives nominated by employees, form
the key to occupational safety and health consultation. The Committee members are accessible and effectively
utilised by both management and employees in the discussion and resolution of occupational safety and health
issues.
The Occupational Safety and Health Committee meets monthly to discuss and resolve occupational issues, review
hazard and incident reports and review progress against the Occupational Safety and Health Plan.
In accordance with the Workers' Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981, ChemCentre has a documented
injury management system and which is readily available to all employees through the intranet. A return to work
program strategy has been developed.
ChemCentre's Occupational Safety and Health Plan was evaluated internally in 2008/09 and outcomes reported to
the Board.

Annual performance for 2008/09 against the following targets:
Indicator Target 2008-2009

Number of fatalities Zero
Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D) incidence 2%
rate
Lost time injury severity rate Zero
Percentage of injured workers returned to 100%
work within 28 weeks
Percentage of managers trained in Greater than 50%
occupational safety, health and injury
management responsibilities
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Appendices

APPENDICES

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Academic presentations and papers
ChemCentre produces and presents a range of academic and peer-reviewed papers, as a way of sharing knowledge,
maintaining high standards of practice and verifying our methods and techniques. Below is a selection of the
numerous papers and presentations produced (or contributed to) by ChemCentre staff members.

Brar, HS, Singh, Z, Swinny, E & Cameron, 12008 'Girdling and grapevine leafroll associated viruses affect berry weight,
colour development and accumulation of anthocyanins in 'Crimson seedless' grapes during maturation and ripening',
Plant Science, vol. 175, pp. 885-897.

Crisp, H 2008 'Keeping one step ahead - recent developments in illicit drugs', presented at Royal Australian Chemical
Institute Forensic Science Seminar, Perth, WA.

Crisp, H 2008 'Synthesis of precursors for methylamphetamine manufacture at clandestine laboratories in Western
Australia', presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, Melbourne, Vic.

Crisp, H 2009 'Drug profiling', presented at State Forensic Science Symposium, Perth, WA.

Crisp, H, Hoare, M & Priddis, C 2008 'A four minute method for the quantitation of pseudoephedrine in seized
pharmaceutical tablets by capillary electrophoresis', presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society
Symposium, Melbourne, Vic.

Dang, KTH, Singh, Z & Swinny, E 2008 'Impact of postharvest disease control methods and cold storage on volatiles,
colour development and fruit quality in ripe 'Kensington Pride' mangoes' Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry,
vol. 56, pp. 10 667-10 674.

Davies, M, Grice, K & Priddis, C 2008 'Discrimination of synthetic illicit drugs by Gas Chromatography Isotope Ratio
Mass Spectrometry (GC-IRMS)', presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium,
Melbourne, Vic. Recipient of 2008 ANZFSS WA Travel Award.

Davies, M, Smith, K, Detata D, Horsley, G & Collins, P 2008 'Purple cotton fibres as evidence of contact', presented at
Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, Melbourne, Vic. Recipient of 2008 Symposium ANZFSS
Medal Winner: Best Poster Presentation and 2008 Symposium ANZFSS Certificate Winner: Best Criminalistics Poster.

Glencross, B, Hawkins, W, Burridge, P, Evans, D, Rutherford, N, McCafferty, P. Dods, K & Sipsas, 5 2008 'Using Near-
Infrared Reflectance Spectroscopy (NIRS) to predict the digestible protein and energy value of lupin kernel meals
when fed to rainbow trout, Oncorhynchus mykiss', Lupins for Health and Wealth - Proceedings of the 12th
International Lupin Conference, Fremantle, WA, pp. 108-114.

Glencross, BD, Hawkins, WE, Evans, D, Rutherford, N, McCafferty, P, Dods, K, Karopoulos, M, Veitch, C, Sipsas S &
Buirchell, B 2008 'Variability in the composition of lupin (Lupinus angustifolius) meals influences their digestible
nutrient and energy value when fed to rainbow trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss)', Aquaculture, vol. 277, pp. 220-230.

Glencross, BD, Hawkins, WE, Evans, D, Rutherford, N, McCafferty, P, Dods, K & Sipsas, S 2008 'Assessing the
implications of variability in the digestible protein and energy value of lupin kernel meals when fed to rainbow trout,
Oncorhynchus mykiss', Aquaculture, Vol 277, no. 3-4, pp. 244-260.

Ho, K 2008 'The Government Food Analyst and DNA profiling', presented to Frederick Irwin Anglican School at
ChemCentre, Perth, WA.

Jambol, 12008 'Sampling and analytical methodologies for characterisation of organometallic compounds in alumina
refinery emissions', presented at Cooperative Research Centre for Contamination, Assessment and Remediation of
the Environment (CRC CARE) Communicate08 Conference, Glenelg, SA.

Khan, AS, Singh, Z & Swinny, E 2009 'Postharvest application of 1-Methylcyclopropene modulates fruit ripening,
storage life and quality of 'Tegan Blue' Japanese plum kept in ambient and cold storage', international Journal of
Food Science and Technology, vol. 44, pp. 1272-1280.

Kumara Mahipala, M B P, Krebs, G L, McCafferty, P & Dods, K 2009 'Effects of supplementation with Chamaecytisus
palmensis, grown in the West Australian Mediterranean environment, on the nutritive value of sheep diets', Small
Ruminant Research, vol. 84, pp. 54-60.

Mahipala K, Krebs, GL, McCafferty, P & Dods, K 2008 'Contents of phenolics, protein precipitation capacity of tannin
in browse and ability to predict them in diets from faecal composition in sheep', Grassland Science in Europe, vol. 13,
pp 474-476.
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Man, C, Yan, G, Aryamanesh, N & Wang, SF 2008 'Selection and breeding of purslane (Portulaca) as commercial
vegetable crop', presented at Horticulture workshop, Department of Agriculture and Food, Perth, WA.

McCafferty, P 2008 'Lead in our environment ', presented at the Science Teachers' Association of Western Australia
Conference (ConSTAWA), Perth, WA.

McCafferty, P 2008 'Utilisation of DNA/NIR technologies to manage rangeland sustainability', presented at
International Rangelands Congress, Hohhot, China.

McCafferty, P 2009 'Lead in the workplace ', presented at the IHI/Bluewater Power station construction site, Collie,
WA.

McCafferty, P 2009 'Utilisation and validation of a rapid, on-site capability for metal analysis', presented at Ozwater
09, Melbourne, Vic.

Mullan, BP, Pluske, JR, Trezona, M, Harris, DJ, Allen, JG, Siddique, KHM, Hanbury, CD, van Barneveld, R1 & Kim, JC
2009 'Chemical composition and standardised ilea) digestible amino acid contents of Lathyrus (Lathyrus cicera) as an
ingredient in pig diets', Animal Feed Science and Technology, vol. 150, pp. 139-143.

Nasar-Abbas, SM, Plummer, JA, Siddique, K, White, P, Harris, D & Dods, K 2008 'Cooking quality of faba bean after
storage at high temperature and the role of lignins and other phenolics in bean hardening' LWT-Food Science and
Technology, vol. 41, pp. 1260-1267.

Nasar-Abbas, SM, Plummer, JA, White, P, Siddique, K, D'Antuono, M, Harris, D & Dods, K 2008, 'Effect of site,
harvesting stage, and genotype on environmental staining in faba bean (Vicia faba L.)', Australian Journal of
Agricultural Research, vol. 59, pp. 365-373.

Nasar-Abbas, SM, White, P, Harris, D, Dods, K, Siddique, K, & Plummer, JA 2008 'Nitrogen retards and oxygen
accelerates darkening in faba bean (Vicia faba L.) during storage', Postharvest Biology and Technology, vol. 47, pp.
113-118.

North, M 2008 'Sampling and analysis for contaminated sites', presented to Australian Contaminated Lands
Consultants Association, Perth, WA.

North, M 2008 'Sampling and analysis for air toxics', presented at an in-house seminar for Alcoa, Perth, WA.

North, M, McGuire, J & Price, B 2008 'Sampling and analysis for acid sulphate soil analysis', presented at training
session for Department of Environment and Conservation staff, Perth, WA.

Norton, B, Daly, F, Krebs, GL & Dods, K 2008 'Variation in nutritional values of shrub forages in the pastoral zone of
Western Australia', presented at International Rangelands Congress, Hohhot, China.

Oosthuizen, F 2008, 'Western Australian roadside oral fluid testing - effectiveness, participation and results',
presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, Melbourne, Vic.

Priddis, C 2008 'Using drug profiling to link crime', presented at Royal Australian Chemical Institute Forensic Science
Seminar, Perth, WA.

Reynolds, D 2009 'Clandestine drug laboratory investigations', presented at State Forensic Science Symposium, Perth,
WA.

Reynolds, D 2009 'Clandestine drug laboratory investigations ', presented to Environmental Health Australia meeting,
Perth, WA.

Reynolds, D 2009 'Keeping one step ahead - recent developments in illicit drugs', presented at State Forensic Science
Symposium, Perth, WA.

Rigby, H, Pritchard, D, Collins, D, Walton, K, Allen, D & Penney, N 2009 'The nitrogen fertiliser replacement value of
biosolids from wastewater treatment', presented at Agribusiness Crop Updates, Perth, WA.

Singh, SP, Singh, Z & Swinny, E 2009 'Postharvest nitric oxide fumigation delays fruit ripening and alleviates chilling
injury during cold storage of Japanese plums (Prunus salicina Lindell)', Postharvest Biology and Technology, vol. 53,
pp.101-108.

Smith, K, Collins, P & Horsley, G 2008 'Adaptations for the detection of lead-free and non-toxic munitions GSR using
automated search protocols', presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, Melbourne,
Vic. Recipient of 2008 ANZFSS WA Travel Award.

Smith, K, May, C, Collins, P & Watling, RJ 2008 'The comparison of LA-ICP-MS and R.I.: Case studies involving vehicle
glass and container glass', presented at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, Melbourne, Vic.
Recipient of 2008 ANZFSS WA Travel Award.

Strzlecki, J, Wang, SF 2009 'Diet of size fractionated Zooplankton off the Western Australian coast - insight from fatty
acids', presented at Marine Connectivity AMSA 2009 International Conference, Adelaide, SA.
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Walton, K 2009 'From waste to water quality', presented at the 6th International Water Sensitive Urban Design
Conference and the 3rd Hydropolis Conference, Perth, WA.

Wang, SF, Clements, J 2008 'Antioxidant activities of lupin seeds', Lupins for Health and Wealth - Proceedings of the
12th International Lupin Conference, Fremantle, WA, pp. 546-551.

Wang, SF, Errington , S, Yap HW 2008 'Studies on carotenoids from lupin seeds ', Lupins for Health and Wealth -
Proceedings of the 12th International Lupin Conference, Fremantle , WA, pp. 198-202.

West, N 2008 'Methods for measuring Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) in air', presented at Australian Institute of
Occupational Hygienists Continuing Education Series, Perth, WA.

Wilkinson, S 2008 'Occupational Health and Safety issues when attending Chemical, Biological and Radiological (CBR)
incidents', presented at Australian Institute of Occupational Hygienists Conference, Perth, WA.

Zhang, L, Wang, SF, Yan, G, Harris, D, Ward, G 2009 'Studies of wine volatiles and their relationship to wine quality',
presented at The University of Western Australia's School of Plant Biology Rottnest Island Postgraduate Summer
School, Rottnest Island, WA.

Presentation and participation in workshops
ChemCentre's participation in a range of technical and theoretical workshops ensure our staff incorporate best
practice in to their work and are able to access up-to-date knowledge and techniques to benefit the wider
community. A selection of the many workshops attended by ChemCentre staff in the past year is outlined below.

• Acid Sulphate Soil Technical Workshop, 2008, Perth, WA.
® Automotive Paint Workshop, National Institute of Forensic Science, 2009, Melbourne, Vic.
® Bomb Scene Examiners - Enhanced Technical Workshop, National Counter Terrorism Committee, 2008,

Adelaide, SA.
® CWA (Chemical Warfare Agents) Introductory Travelling Roadshow, ChemCentre and Defence Science and

Technology Organisation, 2009, Perth, WA.
Development of Field Portable Devices for the Detection of Explosive Residues Workshop, Australian
National Security Science and Technology Unit, Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet, 2008,
Melbourne, Vic.

® Exploding the Myths of Soil Carbon, 2008, Perth, WA.
• Fundamentals of Explosives, University of Rhode island, 2009, New York, USA.
® Glass Interpretation Travelling Roadshow, National Institute of Forensic Science, 2008, Adelaide, SA.
® Homemade Explosives Workshop, Australian Federal Police, 2009, Canberra, ACT.
• Human Remains Recovery Workshop, PathWest and WA Police, 2009, Perth, WA.
® Intelligent, Lean Laboratories, 2008, Melbourne, Vic.
® Oral Fluid Workshop at Australia New Zealand Forensic Science Society Symposium, 2008, Melbourne, Vic.
® Postblast Exercise, Multi-Jurisdictional Exercise (MJEX), National Counter Terrorism Committee, 2008,

Karratha, WA.
o State Forensic Science Symposium, in conjunction with PathWest and WA Police, 2008, Perth, WA.
® Textile Damage, Australian Federal Police, 2008, Canberra, ACT.
e WA Police Clandestine Lab Training Course, with ChemCentre practical lab session, 2009, Perth, WA.

Improving instrumentation and methodologies for greater problem solving
In order to provide the highest quality of analysis to all clients and maintain National Association of Testing
Authorities accreditation, ChemCentre is required to combine high-level expertise with leading-edge methodologies
and instrumentation. Examples of instrumentation obtained and methods developed in the 08-09 period include:

• Atomic absorption spectrophotometer
® Carbon sulphur analyser
® Craic UV-VIS-NIR microspectrophotometer
• Discrete analyser
• Implementation of an automated Janus Robotic Elisa immunoassay system
® Implementation of Toxicology methods on Agilent Triple Quadrupole Liquid Chromatography Mass

Spectrometer

• Low level mercury analyser
Method for determination of inorganic arsenic

® Method for isotopic lead fingerprinting of environmental samples
o Thermo continuum infrared microscope

Biological Oxygen Demand and Chemical Oxygen Demand
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Auditor General

INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION

To the Parliament of Western Australia

CHEMISTRY CENTRE (WA)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

I have audited the accounts, financial statements, controls and key performance indicators of the
Chemistry Centre (WA).

The financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2009, and the Income
Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Notes.

The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency.

Board ' s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer's Instructions, and the key
performance indicators. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and key
performance indicators that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances; and complying with the Financial Management Act 2006 and
other relevant written law.

Summary of my Role
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial statements, controls and key performance indicators based on my audit. This was done
by testing selected samples of the audit evidence. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer
www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/AuditPracStatement Feb09.pdf.

An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements and
key performance indicators is error free. The term "reasonable assurance" recognises that an
audit does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit procedures
should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users
of the financial statements and key performance indicators.
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Chemistry Centre (WA)
Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators for the year ended 30 June 2009

Audit Opinion
In my opinion,

(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the financial
position of the Chemistry Centre (WA) at 30 June 2009 and its financial performance
and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Treasurer's Instructions;

(ii) the controls exercised by the Centre provide reasonable assurance that the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and
the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative provisions; and

(iii) the key performance indicators of the Centre are relevant and appropriate to help
users assess the Centre's performance and fairly represent the indicated performance
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

COLIN'MURBHY
AUDITOR GENERAL
17 September 2009
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